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Independent Auditors’ Report



SULLIVAN, ROGERS & COMPANY, LLC
Corporate Place I, Suite 204 « 99 South Bedford Street
Burlington, Massachusetts 01803

P +781-229-5600 F «781-229-5610 www.sullivan-rogers.com

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Honorable Board of Selectmen
Town of Bourne, Massachusetts

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Bourne, Massachusetts,
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the Town'’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of Bourne,
Massachusetts’ management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Bourne, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 8, 2013, on our
consideration of the Town of Bourne, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and not provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Governmental Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis (located on pages 4 through 13) and general fund and community preservation fund
budgetary comparisons and certain pension and other postemployment benefits information (located on pages 59
through 67) be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

VAL R G, U

April §, 2013
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

As management of the Town of Bourne, Massachusetts (Town), we offer readers of these financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the Town'’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

Financial Highlights

> The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $97,478,800 (net
assets). Of this amount, $8,279,074 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

» The Town’s total net assets decreased $845,798.

> As of the close of the fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances totaling $25,617,341, an increase of $3,192,395 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
$10,487,000 represents unassigned fund balance.

> At the end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund totaled $10,872,935, or 18.8
percent of total general fund expenditures and transfers out.

» The Town’s total bonded debt increased by $2,514,962 during the fiscal year, with new debt issuances
totaling $5,963,500.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements, which
consists of the following three components:

1. Government-wide financial statements
2.  Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the basic financial statements.

This report also contains required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town's
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town'’s non-fiduciary assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, earned
but unused vacation leave, etc.).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).

Governmental activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, health and human
services, culture and recreation, community development and debt service (interest). Business-type activities
include the Town’s sewer and landfill operations.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15-17 of this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into
the following categories and are described below:

1. Governmental funds
2. Proprietary funds
3. TFiduciary funds

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as well
as on balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term effect of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains 11 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the general and community preservation (special revenue) funds, each of which are considered to be
major funds. Data from the other 9 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation
titled nonmajor governmental funds.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-21 of this report.

Proprietary funds

The Town maintains two types of proprietary funds.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its sewer and landfill operations, both
of which are considered to be major funds.

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the Town’s
various functions. The Town uses an internal service fund to account for its health insurance risk-financing
activities. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they
have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements but are

combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-24 of this report.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the Town’s programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to
that used for proprietary funds.

Private-purpose trust funds and agency funds are reported and combined into a single, aggregate presentation in
the fiduciary fund financial statements under the captions “private purpose trust funds” and “agency funds”,
respectively.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 25-26 of this report.
Notes to the basic financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 27-
58 of this report.

Required supplementary information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information. Presented in this information is the budget comparisons for the general fund and

community preservation fund, and certain pension and other post employment benefits information, which can
be found on pages 59-67.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
The following tables present current and prior year data on the government-wide financial statements.
Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. The
Town's assets exceeded liabilities by $97,478,800 at the close of the fiscal year and are summarized as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Assets
Current assets......................... $ 36,461,742 $ 35,612,725 $ 11,972,328 $ 7,862,948 $ 48,434,070 % 43,475,673
Noncurrent assets (excluding
capital assets).................... 805,857 805,497 3,457,420 4,329,460 4,263,277 5,134,957
Capital assets (net)................... 91,509,251 93,317,028 14,843,035 13,189,681 106,352,286 106,506,709
Total assets..........c..oo.c..vnns 128,776,850 129,735,250 30,272,783 25,382,089 159,049,633 155,117,339
Liabilities
Current liabilities
(excluding debt)................ 5,714,729 5,152,326 625,468 767,721 6,340,197 5,920,047
Noncurrent liabilities
(excluding debt)................ 14,240,047 10,609,114 5,540,904 4,928,857 19,780,951 15,537,971
Current debt..................cco. 2,771,497 4,884,242 1,096,255 1,014,296 3,867,752 5,898,538
Noncurrent debt..................... 22,081,706 22,989,703 9,500,227 6,446,482 31,581,933 29,436,185
Total liabilities.................. 44,807,979 43,635,385 16,762,854 13,157,356 61,570,833 56,792,741
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets
(net of related debt)........... 68,198,525 69,014,550 8,386,478 9,786,029 76,585,003 78,800,579
Restricted............oooivuiniinnnnnn, 10,017,276 9,206,480 2,597,447 2,046,880 12,614,723 11,253,360
Unrestricted. ..o, ] 5,753,070 7,878,835 2,526,004 391,824 8,279,074 8,270,659
Total net assets................. $ 83,968,871 % 86,099,865 $ 13,509,929 $ 12,224,733 $ 97,478,800 $ 98,324,598

The largest portion of the Town's net assets (78.6%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, construction
in progress, land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure),
less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. These capital assets are used to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town’s net assets (12.9%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets (8.5% or $8,279,074) may be used to
meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Of this amount, $5,753,070 may be used to support
governmental activities and $2,526,004 may be used to support business-type activities.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Changes in Net Assets

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Town’s total net assets decreased by $845,798, compared to a decrease
of $2,024,410 in the prior fiscal year. These amounts are summarized as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 201
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for services.........co..cooeiieiviiiiiiinnennes 3 4,913,194 $ 4,575,808 $ 12,268,189 §$ 10,588,837 $ 17,181,383 § 15,164,645
Operating grants and contributions.................. 15,149,754 14,513,923 104,376 40,226 15,254,130 14,554,149
Capital grants and contributions...................... 1,030,154 3,929,434 - - 1,030,154 3,929,434
General Revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes............. 36,674,535 35,754,412 - - 36,674,535 35,754,412
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes 2,257,840 2,199,923 - - 2,257,840 2,199,923
Penalties and interest on taxes......................... 407,982 404,540 . - 407,982 404,540
Payments in lieu of taxes..........coovecieiieniiinnnn., 13,948 13,152 - - 13,948 13,152
Community preservation surcharges................ 1,077,282 1,046,611 - . 1,077,282 1,046,611
Grants and contributions not restricted
to specific Programs.........ccooveviiccivniiiniinine e 1,750,890 1,733,259 - . 1,750,890 1,733,259
Unrestricted investment income................c..... 100,920 72,994 - - 100,920 72,994
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes......... - 56,863 = - - 56,863
Premium from issuance of refunding bonds....... - 22,432 - - - 22,432
Gain on sale of capital assets.............ccovevvevan.es 1,105 1,100 - - 1,105 1,100
Other... ... 5. adakide. G .. G R a5 055 99,452 22,765 - - 99,452 22,765
Total TeVeNUES. ... .co.vviiirearaies vereeners e o 63,477,056 64,347,216 12,372,565 10,629,063 75,849,621 74,976,279
Expenses
General GOVEIMMIETIE. .. ..c o venirevieias vesisanssreseannine 4,406,818 4,290,891 - - 4,406,818 4,290,891
Public safetv........oooociiiiiiiin, RS LA, 12,577,889 12,460,640 . 12,577,889 12,460,640
EducatoNiussassuis e « saui s stmasass o somr 2 43,509,828 41,313,134 - - 43,509,828 41,313,134
PUDBLC WOTKS. .. oottt iieat vn van iee e viaeeins 3,635,219 3,801,776 - - 3,635,219 3,801,776
Health and human services..........ccoocoooveveninnnnnnns 1,485,056 1,552,253 - - 1,485,056 1,552,253
Culture and 1ecreation. .. .....coiviierieiiiiniinsiieeianas 1,664,123 1,561,473 - = 1,664,123 1,561,473
Community development.............ccoreeveiarieinnn e 88,726 B - - 88,726 -
Debt service - INEerest.......cccviersvvivnniersirenscensrenssns 797,411 1,461,285 - - 797,411 1,461,285
[T P O g S - - 842,674 840,974 842,674 840,974
Landfilli. . u, .. ... isapsinee e s oo oo sagasiii e oo vresoihe - - 7,687,675 9,718,263 7,687,675 9,718,263
Total expenses. . aavea. e vear . visnasii il i 68,165,070 66,441,452 8,530,349 10,559,237 76,695,419 77,000,689
Change in net assets before transfers...........cc.ovovvvevninnn (4,688,014) (2,094,236) 3,842,216 69,826 (845,798) (2,024,410)
Transfers, Netuwiag . sus: - dedueta- e ovr oo FERREFESTITRT IO 2,557,020 2,440,917 (2,557,020) (2,440,917) E =
Change innet assels....... ..o ciiiii e iniinecrenns e eneens (2,130,994) 346,681 1,285,196 (2,371,091) (845,798) (2,024,410)
Net assets - beginning of year...............ccocvimviiiererinnens 86,099,865 85,753,184 12,224,733 14,595,824 98,324,598 100,349,008
Net assets -end of year..........cooceviiviivinviinnnnn Feaiei. B 83,968,871 $ 86,099,865 $ 13,509,929 % 12,224,733 % 97,478,800 $ 98,324,598

Governmental activities decreased the Town’s net assets by $2,130,994. In the prior year, governmental activities
increased the Town’s net assets by $346,681. The key element of this change is a decrease in capital grants and
contributions of approximately $2,900,000, primarily as a result of fiscal year 2011 school construction
reimbursements received from the Massachusetts School Building Authority for the completed elementary school
project.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Business-type activities increased the Town’s net assets by $1,285,196. In the prior year, business-type activities
decreased the Town’s net assets by $2,371,091. The key elements of this change are:

» Increase in revenues of approximately $1,700,000, primarily resulting from an increase in waste volumes
received for municipal solid waste

» Decrease in depreciation and closure costs of approximately $1,800,000
Fund Financial Statement Analysis

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances totaling
$25,617,341, an increase of $3,192,395 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately $10,487,000 represents
unassigned fund balance. The remainder of fund balance includes the following constraints:

Nonspendable ($35,341)
Restricted ($10,754,736)
Committed ($4,193,748)
Assigned ($146,464)

VVVY

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal year, the general fund’s
unassigned fund balance totaled $10,872,935, while total fund balance was $15,270,258. As a measure of the
general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total
general fund expenditures and transfers out. Unassigned fund balance represents 18.8% of total general fund
expenditures and transfers out, while total fund balance represents 26.4% of that same amount.

The balance of the Town’s general fund increased by $2,124,323 during fiscal year 2012. Although the Town
recognized an approximate $5,574,000 budgetary surplus (excluding encumbrances and continuing
appropriations), approximately $3,403,000 of reserves was utilized for spending during the year.

Financial highlights of the Town’s other major governmental fund is as follows:

The fund balance of the community preservation fund (special revenue) increased by $169,877 during the current
fiscal year. The fund’s receipts included community preservation surcharges ($1,091,120), intergovernmental
revenue ($311,124), investment income ($6,409), penalties and interest on taxes ($8,956), tax liens revenue ($5,945)
and other revenue ($104). Expenditures totaling approximately $520,000 were incurred during the year and a
transfer of $733,460 was made to the general fund to cover community preservation related debt service.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Proprietary funds

The Town'’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the sewer and landfill enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to $874,528 and
$1,651,476, respectively. The sewer and landfill enterprise funds had a change in net assets for the year of
($82,070) and $1,367,266, respectively. Other factors concerning the finances of these two funds have already been
addressed in the discussion of the Town's business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The original general fund budget of $53,055,708 was increased by $1,021,793 (1.9%) during the fiscal year. The
following table summarizes the increase:

Purpose of Increase Amount Funding Source
Bourndale herring run..............ccooeeeiiininn, $ 150,000 Transfer from stabilization fund
Reserve for accrued compensated absences............... 100,000 Unassigned fund balance
Dredging......c.oiveiviii i 90,000 Transfer from waterways special revenue fund
Pump outboat........coocovvniiiiiiii e e, 70,200 Transfer from waterways special revenue fund
Buzzards Bay fire station repairs..............ccoovvviinnnin, 60,000 Transfer from capital projects fund
Estuaries project..........coooviviiiiiiiiiii 57,450 Unassigned fund balance
Fuel & gasoline expenses................ccccoivevvniniiiennicnn, 55,000 Unassigned fund balance
Y21 5 (0] 5L TP 44,306 Unassigned fund balance
Cheryl Lane road project...............covvrviiiinnnniinnnnnn, 35,000 Unassigned fund balance
Fire department air COmpressor..................ocvvneeein, 32,500 Transfer from capital projects fund
Fire department portable radios..................ccoevern. 30,000 Unassigned fund balance
Pocasset fire station repairs............cocviiineieiinnonei, 30,000 Transfer from capital projects fund
Wage and classification study............coooeeiiiiniinnnnn, 25,000 Unassigned fund balance
Pump out system...........ccooviiiiiinii 25,000 Transfer from waterways special revenue fund
Public works electrical service upgrade.................... 24,987 Transfer from capital projects fund
Board of health vehicle.....................ccooiiiinnnnn, 21,500 Unassigned fund balance
Lifeguard eXpenses...........coovviivinirriiineniiinnenninnnn. 20,000 Unassigned fund balance
Library heating system..............cccooeviiiiii i, 20,000 Unassigned fund balance
Veterans building renovations................ccoecccoennnnnnn. 20,000 Unassigned fund balance
Police computer and laptops..........c....ccovvivieiniinnnnn, 20,000 Transfer from capital projects fund
Fire department safety equipment...............c.cocoevn. 20,000 Unassigned fund balance
Fire department expenses...............coccevervriieiniiinnnnn, 17,500 Unassigned fund balance
Lawn mowing equipment...........c..oooccoviiinicinennnnn, 18,166 Unassigned fund balance
Energy coordinator...........ccccooievinniiinii s 15,000 Unassigned fund balance
Lifeguard wages..........ccooooviiiiiiininn e, 10,000 Unassigned fund balance
Public works one ton dump truck.............cocovoviiinnnn, 8,171 Transfer from capital projects fund
Unpaid bills.........cocooiiiii i, 2,013 Transfer from stabilization fund
Totalincrease.........coooocviiiiniiiin i $ 1,021,793

During the year, revenues and other financing sources exceeded budgetary estimates, while expenditures and
encumbrances and continuing appropriations were less than budgeted appropriations, resulting in a positive
budget to actual variance of approximately $3,604,000.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets

The Town's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities at the end of the fiscal
year totaled $106,352,286 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment and
infrastructure. The total decrease in the investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year totaled 0.1% (a 1.7%
decrease for governmental activities and a 1.6% increase for business-type activities).

Major capital asset events that occurred during the current fiscal year include the following:

Landfill liner ($2,711,383)

Road improvements ($689,361)
Building improvements ($401,517)
Landfill equipment ($360,900)
Dredging ($223,209)

Technology upgrades ($201,457)
DPW truck purchase ($149,582)

YVVVYYVYVY

The following table summarizes the Town's capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Land.....oiii $ 26,704,645 $ 26,704,645 $ 4,921,041 $ 2,209,658 % 31,625,686 % 28,914,303
Construction in progress........... 75,050 49,624 - - 75,050 49,624
Land Improvements................. 2,306,687 2,222,160 - 1,086,127 2,306,687 3,308,287
Buildings and improvements...... 55,187,670 57,195,290 - 4,381,603 55,187,670 61,576,893
Machinery and equipment......... 2,977,249 3,487,049 6,260,377 1,665,267 9,237,626 5,152,316
Infrastructure................o 4,257,950 3,658,260 3,661,617 3,847,026 7,919,567 7,505,286
Total capital assets................... $ 91,509,251 $ 93,317,028 $ 14,843,035 % 13,189,681 $ 106,352,286 % 106,506,709

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 41-43 of this report.

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonded debt outstanding was $35,399,685, which is backed by the full
faith and credit of the Town, and is summarized as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
General obligation bonds........... $ 24502755 § 25043255 $ 10455227 $ 7218000 $ 34,957,982 $ 32,261,255
MWPAT notes...........c............ 350,448 380,690 91,255 242,778 441,703 623,468
Total bonds and notes............... $ 24853203 $ 25423945 $ 10546482 $ 7,460,778 $ 35399685 $ 32,884,723
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Management's Discussion and Analysis For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

The Town has an AA rating from Standard & Poor’s for its most recent issuance of debt on December 15, 2012.
Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Note 9 on pages 46-50 of this report.
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all those with an
interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for

additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Director, Town Hall, 24 Perry Avenue,
Bourne, Massachusetts 02532.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
ASSETS Activities Activities Total
Current asselts:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,456,430 $ 7,610,157 % 24,066,587
Restricted cash and cash equivalents... 12,307,844 2,605,925 14,913,769
Investments............o.us 1,275,222 - 1,275,222
Restricted investments, . 1,561,281 - 1,561,281
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Real estate and personal property taxes... 1,581,359 - 1,581,359
Tax liens 337,604 64,717 402,321
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.... 360,162 - 360,162
Communily preservation surcharges. 49,602 - 49,602
User charges..... - 1,638,818 1,638,818
Special assessments. 66,196 4,371 70,567
Departmental and other.... 574,633 - 574,633
Intergovernmental... 498,709 48,340 547,049
Working capital deposit 1,392,700 - 1,392,700
Totlcorrenbassels: om e asami s L s 36,461,742 11,972,328 48,434,070
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents..........ccociiiiiiiiiiiinnnneniiiniisiieesieenios - 3,334,890 3,334,890
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Real estate tax deferrals.. 77,642 - 77,642
Special assessments.... 167,533 98,263 265,796
Intergovernmental... - 24,267 24,267
Tax foreclosures 560,682 . 560,682
Capital assets not being depreciated................. 26,779,695 4,921,041 31,700,736
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation... 64,729,556 9,921,994 74,651,550
Total RONCUITENE ASSELS.... tvevererreeeraneierssrererenernrssnsesnserersssssiorsnnnas 92,315,108 18,300,455 110,615,563
TOtAl ASSEES...0iveri v ieiiiis e ee st et se e e e s eesenanes . 128,776,850 30,272,783 159,049,633
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payabie... 2,496,970 478,488 2,975,458
Accrued payroll... 1,964,788 38,278 2,003,066
Tax refunds payable... 299,502 - 299,502
Other liabilities......... 43,515 - 43,515
Accrued interest... 319,863 89,533 409,39
Accrued health claims payable 408,393 - 408,393
Compensated absences...., 181,698 19,169 200,867
Short-term notes payable.. - 50,000 50,000
Long-term bonds and notes payable,......cccocoiviiiineiniuinian.. 2,771,497 1,046,255 3,817,752
Total current liabililies. . .ov. . vsisiiidvaiieeniniinreeiaeissiesism e osssrserenris 8,486,226 1,721,723 10,207,949
Noncurrent liabilities:
Landfill closure - 4,563,577 4,563,577
Compensated absences 1,635,279 172,518 1,807,797
Net OPEB obligalion 12,604,768 804,809 13,408,577
Long-term bonds and notes payable.. 22,081,706 9,500,227 31,581,933
Total noncurrent labilities.........cuiiieiirinririr i e s s esenrnserasns 36,321,753 15,041,131 51,362,884
Total liabilities, . c..iiiiiiaiini o diiirias arnre e e aantassrssamseres saes 44,807,979 16,762,854 61,570.833
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debl.......ceveeriiiiiririinieieieersnersirirenes 68,198,525 8,386,478 76,585,003
Restricted for:
Capital purposes . 2,597,447 2,597,447
Community preservation. 4,718,646 - 4,718,646
Affordable housing... 143,478 - 143,478
Debt service. 57,111 = 57111
Permanent funds:
Expendable,............. 159,545 159,545
Nonexpendable......... 35,341 - 35,341
Other specific purposes... 4,903,155 - 4,903,155
Unrestricted..........cocooininin 5.753.070 2,526,004 8,279,074
Total Net ASSELS, . ..civieuienrsrase srnrasarsr s v s e sa s ane s nnnnne, B 83,968,871 $ 13,509,929 % 97,478,800

See notes to basic financial statements,
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)/
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General government..................... $ 4,406,818 % 440,802 % 86,567 % - % (3,879,449)

Public safety..............c.coconnennn, 12,577,889 3,573,176 125,021 - (8,879,692)

Education.................cccceverennnn, 43,509,828 734,871 14,313,146 - (28,461,811)

Public works........cocooeviiiiiinnininn 3,635,219 13,186 130,234 719,030 (2,772,769)

Health and human services....... L 1,485,056 78,061 205,281 - (1,201,714)

Culture and recreation.................. 1,664,123 73,098 31,991 311,124 (1,247,910}

Community development... 88,726 - 120,317 - 31,591

Debt service - interest................... 797,411 - 137,197 - (660,214)

Total governmental activities..., 68,165,070 4,913,194 15,149,754 1,030,154 (47,071,968)
Business-type activities:
SEWET.....oiiiiniren e, 842,674 889,177 2,170 - 48,673
Landfilliisuicininiaiaiaadimeii 7,687,675 11,379,012 102,206 = 3,793,543
Total business-type activities..... 8,530,349 12,268,189 104,376 - 3,842,216
Total primary government..................... 5 76,695,419 $ 17,181,383 % 15,254,130 $ 1,030,154 $ (43,229,752)
(Continued)
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Continued)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Changes in net assets:
Net (expense)/revenue (from previous page).... $ (47,071,968) $ 3842216 $ (43,229,752)
General revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes....... 36,674,535 < 36,674,535
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes........... 2,257,840 - 2,257,840
Penalties and interest on taxes.................... 407,982 - 407,982
Payments in lieu of taxes....................o 13,948 - 13,948
Community preservation surcharges ........... 1,077,282 - 1,077,282
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs................ccoooiiii 1,750,890 - 1,750,890
Unrestricted investment income................. 100,920 - 100,920
Gain on sale of capital assets...................... 1,105 - 1,105
Other......ooi 99,452 - 99,452
Transfers, Het ........cocovueiiiniiiiiiii e 2,557,020 (2,557,020) -
Total general revenues and transfers................ 44,940,974 (2,557,020) 42,383,954
Change in netassets...............c.c...ccevnnnnn., (2,130,994) 1,285,196 (845,798)
Net assets - beginning of year......................... 86,099,865 12,224,733 98,324,598
Net assets-end of year...............ccooeovvivninnn. $ 83,968,871 $ 13,509,929 % 97,478,800
See notes to basic financial statements. (Concluded)
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2012
Nonmajor Total
Community Governmental Governmental

ASSETS General Preservation Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents..................coovveiiieininennnnn. $ 16,456,430 % - - 16,456,430
INVESEMENES. .. tvt it e 1,275,222 - - 1,275,222
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Real estate and personal property taxes.................... 1,581,359 - 2 1,581,359

Real estate tax deferrals............covevvviriereiininninainnns 77,642 - - 77,642

Tax HeMS....ovieieii i 330,991 6,612 - 337,603

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes........................ 360,162 - - 360,162

Community preservation surcharges....................... - 49,602 - 49,602

Special @asseSSMENES.........c.ovvveiiviiiiiieiiiriiiaenans 59,465 - 174,264 233,729

Departmental and other...........c..c.coivvi - - 574,633 574,633

Intergovernmental............c.coovivvniviiiiiiiininaa, 108,739 - 389,970 498,709
Tax fOreClOSUTES. ...uvviee it 560,682 - - 560,682
Reslricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents.............c...coociiiiiiinn 57,111 4,670,597 5,811,826 10,539,534

INVESEMENES. .ttt yiireiiienieeieirres it rreanrnrinrenrereres - - 124,356 124,356
TOTAL ASSETS... .o $ 20,867,803 $ 4,726,811 7,075,049 32,669,663
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:

Warrants payable..............oocooei . 5 620,633 % 8,165 590,387 1,219,185

Accrued payroll.........coocoiii 1,913,674 - 51,114 1,964,788

Tax refunds payable................occcivinneiiinn, 299,502 - - 299,502

Other liabilities. ..o e 43,515 E - 43,515

Deferred reVenUe......o..civvirieieieieieeiniireeaeanennn 2,713,424 56,214 748,897 3,518,535

Accrued short-term interest..........c.coovvveivineieiiinin.. 6,797 - - 6,797
TOTAL LIABILITIES. . ..cioriiiiieriaenraranenrsssnsinnminerasnsns 5,597,545 64,379 1,390,398 7,052,322
FUND BALANCES:

Nonspendable..............coociiiiiniiiniii - - 35,341 35,341

Restricted.........ooociiiiiiii 57,111 4,662,432 6,035,193 10,754,736

Commitbted..........ooiviiii e 4,193,748 - - 4,193,748

Assigned... ..., 146,464 = - 146,464

Unassigned...........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiii 10,872,935 - (385,883) 10,487,052
TOTAL FUND BALANCES. ......cociiiiiiieiiiiieen 15,270,258 4,662,432 5,684,651 25,617,341
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES.............. $ 20,867,803 $ 4,726,811 7,075,049 $ 32,669,663

See notes to basic financial statements.

Town of Bourne, Massachusetts
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

REVENUES

Real estate and personal property taxes..............ocooocveee,

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes

Tax liens..............ooeeves.

Payments in lieu of taXes............c.coooveerienivinnnriinin s,
Community preservation surcharges................ceeeeivens

Charges for services........
Intergovernmental .........
Special assessments........

Penalties and interest on taxes..
Licenses and permits.......

Fines and forfeitures.......

Departmental and other...

Contributions...............
Investment income........,

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government. ..
Public safety.............
Education.................
Public works.............

Health and human services....

Culture and recreation

Community development...............c.ccccocnninn

Pension benefits.........

Employee benefits......

Property and liability insurance

State and county charges..
Debt service:

Principal.......ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiai,
INterest siuuiimis i vorervsvessuiimieng ixs i viieit s iats

TOTAL EXPENDITURES......ccooiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiais

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES...

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfersin...................

Sale of capital assets........

Transfersout..................

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)....

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.......ccueuiaeeaeeaiineraens

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.............c0.....

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR.......c.c.coovvviiiriiiiininn,

See notes to basic financial sta

tements.

Towu of Bourne, Massachusetts

Nonmajor Total
Community Governmental Governmental
General Preservation Funds Funds

36,992,701 $ - - % 36,992,701
2,276,771 - B 2,276,771
207,719 5,945 - 213,664
13,948 - - 13,948

- 1,091,120 - 1,091,120

- - 2,688,973 2,688,973
12,701,134 311,124 4,465,300 17,477,558
9,474 - - 9,474
399,026 8,956 - 407,982
570,818 - - 570,818
128,945 - - 128,945
1,604,186 104 86,499 1,690,789

- - 190,809 190,809

100,941 6,409 32,864 140,214
55,005,663 1,423,658 7,464,445 63,893,766
2,731,816 38,554 244,663 3,015,033
7,792,355 - 951,070 8,743,425
21,988,989 - 4,572,938 26,561,927
2,102,137 - 860,733 2,962,870
919,536 59,290 39,581 1,018,407
651,713 422,477 96,531 1,170,721

- - 88,726 88,726

8,057,599 - - 8,057,599
6,815,213 - - 6,815,213
787,715 - - 787,715
2,812,142 - - 2,812,142
2,434,242 - - 2,434,242
792,173 - 792,173
57,885,630 520,321 6,854,242 65,260,193
(2,879,967) 903,337 610,203 (1,366,427)
4,888,398 - 22,410 4,910,808
- - 1,863,500 1,863,500

137,197 - = 137,197
1,105 - - 1,105
(22,410) (733,460) (1,597,918) (2,353,788)
5,004,290 (733,460) 287,992 4,558,822
2,124,323 169,877 898,195 3,192,395
13,145,935 4,492,555 4,786,456 22,424,946
15,270,258 $ 4,662,432 $ 5,684,651 $ 25,617,341
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Total governmental fund balances (page 18)...............ccooovviiiiiiiiin $ 25,617,341

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds............... 91,509,251

Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds......................... 3,518,535

In the statement of net assets, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due............................ (313,066)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Bonds and notes payable...............o.iiii (24,853,203)
Compensated abseriCes. ... .. ... o... i s s s s viem s do s s s (1,816,977)
Net OPEB obligation...............ooooiiiiiii e (12,604,768)

An internal service fund is used by management to account for health insurance
activities. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund is reported

as governmental activities in the statement of net assets....................cccooociiiiinn 2,911,758
Net assets of governmental activities (page 15).........coooeviiiiiiiiiiini $ 83,968,871

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 19)..........cooocviiiivinnniiereevirneee e $ 3,192,395

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. These amounts represent the related activity
of the current period.
Capital OUHIAYS........coooiiiiiii e 2,021,798
DEPIECIAON. .. ..\ e (3,823,774)

In the statement of activities, the loss on the disposal of capital assets is reported,
whereas in the governmental funds the disposal is not reported as financial resources.
As a result, the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the
net book value of the capital assets disposed...................cc.oo (5,801)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are fully deferred in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances, Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various types of accounts receivable
(i.e., real estate and personal property, motor vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the
two statements. This amount represents the net change in deferred revenue...........ccc.ccvvviiin. (655,013)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial resources

to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes

the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any

impact on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,

premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts

are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. These amounts represent the

related activity of the current period.
BON PrOCERUS survmsaimicsmmsamihiine v s i s s o e P S S A i (1,863,500)
Bond maturities.......... G R R R s SR A R R A 2,434,242

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due. This amount
represents the net change in accrued interest payable.........ccocociiiiiiiiiiiiiii (5,238)

Some expenses reported in the statement activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
These amounts represent the net changes:
Compensated ADSEICES. . ..........cciuiiiiiiiiiit e e 90,863
Net OPEB ObLIGatION. .......ioiiieii st (3.712,710)

An internal service fund is used by management to account for health insurance
activities. The net activity of the internal service fund is reported with

governmental activities:m i ms Wi s iT i m s s e R e s e e 95,744
Changes in net assets of governmental activities (PAZE 17).......uvvrriiiiiriieeiiirieeeeeeeieiee e $  (2,130,994)

See notes to basic financial statements,
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FUND NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
ASSETS Sewer Landfill Total Funds
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents................................ $ 816,561 6,793,596 & 7,610,157 -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents.....................o..o.e 8,478 2,597,447 2,605,925 1,768,310
Restricted Investments.............ccoeveerrevvinnininnineneininenns. - - - 1,436,925
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts
Usercharges..............cocccoociniiiini 117,167 1,521,651 1,638,818 -
Utility liens............ 64,717 - 64,717 =
Special assessments.... 4,371 - 4,371 -
Intergovernmental..... 48,340 - 48,340 -
Working capital deposit.............ccoiciiiiiieniniinns - - 1,392,700
Total current assetS.............uuveivvereieireerneennraninns 1,059,634 10,912,694 11,972,328 4,597,935
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents.............................. - 3,334,890 3,334,890 -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Special aSSeSSMENTS. .......c.iivrvevrriiiiiessineranseiesnnreeasas 98,263 - 98,263 ~
Intergovernmental...........,......, 24,267 - 24,267 -
Capital assets not being depreciated........................ooo., - 4,921,041 4,921,041 -
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation................. 3,736,350 6,185,644 9,921,994 =
Total noncurrent assets..........oevevvveeiivieririinieeniins 3,858,880 14,441,575 18,300,455
Total @s5ets........iiviiriiiriiiiiiiei e 4,918,514 25,354,269 30,272,783 4,597,935
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payable 189,251 289,237 478,488 1,277,784
Accrued payroll................... 7,694 30,584 38,278 -
AcCTud INEETOSE. ... ecvuiiiiii et 364 89,169 89,533 -
Accrued health claims payable..................................... - - - 408,393
Compensated absences..............ccoeeeveiivviivvieinieeeennnnnnon 2,880 16,289 19,169 -
Short-term notes payable...............coceeviireiniie i, - 50,000 50,000
Long-term bonds and notes payable............................... 129,255 917,000 1,046,255 =
Total current Habilities......... . .ceverivrssreesssneerannnss 329,444 1,392,279 1,721,723 1,686,177
Noncurrent liabilities:
Landfill closure and postclosure care............c.ccocceeerrnnnnn. - 4,563,577 4,563,577 -
Compensated absences..........c..oooeeveeiieniinnnnnen i 25,915 146,603 172,518
Net OPEB obligation 73,054 731,755 804,809 -
Long-term bonds and notes payable..................c.......... 87,227 9,413,000 9,500,227 -
Total noncurrent liabilities......................cccvvurer, 186,196 14,854,935 15,041,131 -
Total liabilities................oocccvvirreiviiineninnnes 515,640 16,247,214 16,762,854 1,686,177
FUND NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt..................... 3,528,346 4,858,132 8,386,478 -
Restricted for capital............cccocoveiniiiiiiiiiiin e - 2,597,447 2,597,447 -
Unrestricted. .. ..o 874,528 1,651,476 2,526,004 2,911,758
Total NEt ASSEIS. . .uviitiiiie it it e e eees $ 4,402,874 9,107,055 $ 13,509,929 2,911,758
See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Sewer Landfill Total Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for ServiCes.........oouvviiiveiiiiiini s $ 868,925 11,379,012 $ 12,247,937 % -
Penalties and interest..........co.ovreiniiiiiiiiii e 20,251 - 20,251 -
Employer contribubONS. ... .evvrviiiiiiieieicieiiiier i - - - 6,805,615
Employee contributions. .............cevriieriinneciiiniriineeiaeennn - - = 2,140,569
OMNET. . . cupsmemraneinimsess wisss s soss s s SwH s 6 55 550 s 33T RA AR TSRS - - - 81,210
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES. ......iciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiainnne, 889,176 11,379,012 12,268,188 9,027,394
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of service and administration.............o.vvvrienieineriiininanns, 418,445 5,571,677 5,990,122 -
Town of Wareham assessment..........c..oovveeiiiieininiiirnirrnnen 188,478 - 188,478 -
Repairs and maintenance.............oocooviiiiiviiiin e 36,626 129,541 166,167 -
Depreciation.........oovvii 195,611 1,248,139 1,443,750 -
ClOSUTE COBES. .ttt et ettt e et ee e - 513,444 513,444 .
Employee benefits.............ooocveiiiiiiii - - = 9,357,975
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.........cviviniiiiiiiraiiiiiinns 839,160 7,462,801 8,301,961 9,357,975
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)......ccviviniiiniiieieeineneaeen, 50,016 3,916,211 3,966,227 (330,581)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental........c...coooiiiiiii 1,127 = 1,127 -
INVeStMENt iMCOMIE. .. i e 1,043 27,873 28,916 426,325
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes...................cocevun. - 74,334 74,334 -
[nterest exXpense..... ..o (3,514) (224,874) (228,388) -
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.... (1,344) (122,667) (124,011) 426,325
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS.......00vrneeirinrenranens 48,672 3,793,544 3,842,216 95,744
TRANSFERS
TranSfers N ..o e e - 21,600 21,600 -
Transfers Out...........viiiiiiiii (130,742) (2,447,878) (2,578,620) =
TOTAL TRANSFERS: ;uisinsiusssssassivsiassiminvsnssnisnbedssisniiara (130,742) (2,426,278) (2,557,020) -
CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS.......iiiiiiiveicniiiiei e (82,070) 1,367,266 1,285,196 95,744
FUND NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR......vcviiiiiiiiiinininns 4,484,944 7,739,789 12,224,733 2,816,014
FUND NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR. ....ooviviieei i $ 4402874 $ 9,107,055 $ 13,509,929 $ 2,911,758

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3(, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users.........c...
Receipts from interfund services provided
Payments to vendors,
Payments to employees.
Payments for employee benefits

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES. ..iiiiiiiiiiiciies iieisiiie st sie s

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in
‘Transfers out....

NET CASH FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES....

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the issuance of bonds and notes..
Premium from issuance of bonds and noltes......
Acquisition and construction of capital assets....
Principal payments on bonds and notes....
INLErest eXPense.. . i

NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES...............

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sales/ (purchases) of investments..
Investmenl income.........ooceviee

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES. .. coviecuiemsesiineiniceiasssiiniinsissaansnnass
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ....cooiiiiiinainniiienriin et ivienniaes
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

(Includes $33,299, $6,270,208 and $1,736,992 reported as restricted in the
sewer and landfill enterprise funds and internal service fund, respectively)......

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
(Includes $8,478, $5,932,337 and $1,768,310 reported as restricted in the
sewer and landfill enterprise funds and internal service fund, respectively).............

RECONCITLIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (I0SS). ... ciiiiuiiviiiinicnniininnnicriennanees
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash from operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities not requiring current cash flows:
Deprecialion. ..cc.uiviiiriiiiieeeiisriinirissvarrurirnan i resenan
Net OPEB obligation.......c.c.ooeiciimimmmmmmmimmiim i
Changes in assets and liabilities requiring current cash flows:
User charges..
Utility liens. .,
Special assessments...
Working capital deposit
Warrants payable................
Accrued payroll...c.oiovoiviiiiinnn
Accrued health claims payable..
Landfill closure and postclosure care. .
Compensated absences........cc.ccveivinie

Total adjustmentsuiimiG . rai ki o vvos ai Sara i ddbansvaT o rE R T Ao be s bhaea i shwad i gvone

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES......cuimiiiiiiiiiiiiiiasiaiiiinieteissentanssnessaesrens

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Intergovernmental debt subsidies (MWPAT)...cocciiiivciiiiiioiinisicisinimsseiiniicnsmeansnnes

See notes to basic financial statements
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Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Service
Sewer Landfill Total Funds
~1 962,776 % 11,270,072 $ 12,232,848 % 2,243,579
- . - 6,805,615
(479,516) {4,390,051) (4,869,567) -
(127,966) (1,396,654) (1,524,620) -
- - - (9.721,646)
355,29 5,483,367 5,838,661 (672,452)
- 21,600 21,600 -
(130,742) (2,447,878) (2,578,620) -
(130,742) (2,426,278) (2,557,020} -
- 4,150,000 4,150,000 -
- 74,334 74,334 -
(24,821) (3,072,283) (3,097,104) -
(79,956) (886,000) {965,956)
(2,621) (218,870) (221,491) -
(107,398) 47,181 (60,217) -
- < - 277,445
1,043 27,873 28,916 426,325
1,043 27,873 28,916 703,770
118,197 3,132,143 3,250,340 31,318
706,842 9,593,790 10,300,632 1,736,992
$ 825,039 $ 12,725,933  $ 13,550,972 & 1,768,310
$ 50,016 $ 3,916,211 % 3,966,227 % (330,581)
195,611 1,248,139 1,443,750 -
31,362 238,592 269,954 -
24,092 (108,940) (84,848) -
14,481 - 14,481 -
35,027 - 35,027 -
- - - 21,800
m {155,713) (155,602) (42,187)
5810 1,354 7.164 -
. ; 5 (321,484)
- 338,358 338,358 -
{1,216) 5,366 4,150
305,278 1,567,156 187243 (341,871)
$ 355294 % 5483367 % 5,838,661 $ (672,452)
$ 49,467 $ - 5 49.467 $ -
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012
Private
Purpose Agency
ASSETS Trust Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents..............cc.occooiiii $ 33,722 % 730,837
LIABILITIES
Warrants payable............ i s i s i i - 330,968
Liabilities due depositors..............coooveiiriiiiiii, - 399,869
Total liabilities..................coooi - 730,837
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for other purposes.......................coc $ 33,722 $ -

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Private
Purpose
Trust Funds
ADDITIONS
Net investment income:;
T ErES . vt $ 2,377
DEDUCTIONS
OtRET. . 800
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS. ...ttt 1,577
NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR . .....ooiii i, 32,145
NET ASSETS ATEND OF YEAR. ..., $ 33,722

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. General

The basic financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting policies are described herein.

B. Reporting Entity

The Town of Bourne, Massachusetts (Town) is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected Board of
Selectmen.

For financial reporting purposes, the basic financial statements include all funds, organizations, agencies, boards,
commissions and institutions that are not legally separate from the Town.

The Town has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable as well as
other organizations for which the nature and/or significance of their relationship with the Town are such that
exclusion would cause the Town’s basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. It has been
determined that there are no component units that require inclusion in the basic financial statements.

[oint Venture

A joint venture is an organization (resulting from a contractual arrangement) that is owned, operated or governed
by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which the participants
retain an ongoing financial interest or ongoing financial responsibility. Joint control means that no single
participant has the ability to unilaterally control the financial or operating policies of the joint venture.

The Town participates in one joint venture with other municipalities to pool resources and share the costs, risks
and rewards of providing goods and services to venture participants directly, or for the benefit of the general
public or specified recipients.

Upper Cape Cod Regional Technical School

The Town is indirectly liable for the Upper Cape Cod Regional Technical School’s (School) debt and other
expenditures and is assessed annually for its share of operating and capital costs. The Town’s fiscal year 2012
assessment totaled approximately $1,691,000. Separate audited financial statements of the School may be
obtained by contacting the School at 220 Sandwich Road, Bourne, Massachusetts 02532.

C. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (statement of net assets and the statement activities) report
information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. Governmental
activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which are primarily supported by user fees.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Internal service funds and fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements apply all applicable Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued on or prior to November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements,

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in the fiscal
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include the following:

> Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment.

» Grants and contributions which are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a specific
function or segment.

» Grants and contributions which are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a specific function or
segment,

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.
Except for charges between the general fund and enterprise funds, the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct

costs and program revenues reported for the functions affected.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be
liquidated with current expendable available resources.

Town of Bourne, Massachusetts 28 Basic Financial Statements



Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60-days after
the end of the fiscal year. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become
measurable and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is used to account for and report all financial resources not accounted for and reported in another
fund.

The community preservation fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the 3% local real estate tax surcharge
on nonexempt property (and matching state trust fund distribution) that can be used for open space, historic
resource and affordable housing purposes. Property exempt from the surcharge consists of the first $100,000 of
all residential property and also property owned by low income or seniors with a low or moderate income as
defined by Massachusetts Department of Revenue (DOR) guidelines. Disbursements from this fund must
originate from the Community Preservation Committee and be approved by Town Meeting.

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are
aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the governmental funds financial
statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted
or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.

Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those types of capital-related outflows financed by proprietary
funds or for assets that will be held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Permanent funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that only earnings,
and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the government’s programs and benefit the government
or its citizenry.

Proprietary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
the proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

'The following major proprietary funds are reported:

The sewer enterprise fund is used to account for the Town's sewer activities.

The landfill enterprise fund is used to account for the Town's landfill activities.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Additionally, the following proprietary fund type is reported:

The internal service fund is used to account for the financing of services provided by one department to other
departments or governmental units. This fund is used to account for risk financing activities related to
employees’ health insurance.

Fiduciary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the government’s programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in the
permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively benefits individuals, private
organizations, or other governments.

The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a custodial capacity. Such assets consist primarily of
performance bonds and student activity funds. Agency funds do not present the results of operations or have a
measurement focus.

E. Deposits and Investments

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are carried at fair value, which is determined based on quotations from a national securities
exchange.

F. Accounts Receivable

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and fund financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis of
accounting, respectively.

Real Estate Taxes, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1% of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessor’s for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes are
due on August 1%, November 1%, February 1%t and May 1 and are subject to penalties and interest if they are not
paid by the respective due date.

Real estate tax liens are processed annually after the close of the valuation year on delinquent properties and are
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year they are processed.

Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the Town and are recorded as
receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles
registered and the fair values of those vehicles to the Town. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle
multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of value.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Community Preservation Surcharges

Community preservation surcharges are levied annually and at a rate of 3% of residents’ real estate tax bills with
exemptions for the first $100,000 of residential property and property owned by qualified persons with low
income and seniors (60+) with low or moderate income as defined by DOR guidelines. The surcharge is due with
the real estate tax on August 1%, November 1¢t, February 15t and May 15t and are subject to penalties and interest if
they are not paid by the respective due date. Overdue surcharges are included on the tax liens processed on
delinquent real estate taxes. Surcharges are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of the levy.

User Charges

Sewer

Sewer user charges are levied semi-annually based on a flat fee determined by the sewer commissioners and are
subject to penalties and interest if they are not paid by the respective due date. Sewer liens are processed

annually and are included as a lien on the property owner’s tax bill. Sewer charges are recorded as receivables in
the fiscal year of the levy.

Landfill
Landfill user charges are assessed as activity occurs and are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year accrued.
Special Assessments

Special assessments consist of septic, sewer and street betterments and are recorded as receivables in the fiscal
year accrued.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables primarily consist primarily of ambulance accounts receivable and are
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year accrued.

Intergovernmental

Various state and federal operating and capital grants are applied for and received annually. For non-
expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met. For expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized when the qualifying expenditures are
incurred and all other grant requirements are met,

G. Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts

The allowance for uncollectible amounts is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis for
the following accounts receivable:

Personal property taxes

Motor vehicle and other excise taxes
User charges (landfill)
Departmental and other

YV VVY
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The following types of accounts receivable are secured via the lien process and are considered 100% collectible.
Accordingly, an allowance for uncollectible amounts is not reported.

Real estate taxes and tax liens
Community preservation surcharges
Special assessments

User charges (sewer)

VVVY

Intergovernmental receivables are considered 100% collectible.
H. Inventories

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the
government-wide and fund financial statements and therefore are not reported.

I. Restricted Assets

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature of the availability of the asset.
Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws of other governments,
or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

J. Capital Assets

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets, which consist of land, construction in progress, land improvements, buildings and improvements,
machinery and equipment and infrastructure (e.g., roads, sewer mains, and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities column of the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market
value at the date of donation.

All purchases and construction costs in excess of $25,000 are capitalized at the date of acquisition or construction,
respectively, with expected useful lives of greater than one year.

Capital assets (excluding land and construction in progress) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows:

Estimated
Useful
Life
Capital Asset Type (in years)
Land improvements................... 5-40
Buildings and improvements....... 15-40
Machinery and equipment........... 3-10
Infrastructure............................ 20-50
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The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the fiscal year of the purchase.
K. Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within funds that may result in amounts
owed between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/ seller nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net assets as “internal
balances”.

Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/ seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “Due from other funds”
or “Due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

L. Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds. These
transactions are reported as transfers in and transfers out.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental activities in the
statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the statement of activities as “Transfers, net”.

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out.

M. Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue at the fund financial statement level represents billed receivables that do not meet the available
criterion in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of

accounting. Deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial
statements (full accrual).
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N. Net Assets and Fund Balances

Government-Wide Financial Statements and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (Net Assets)

Net assets are reported as restricted when amounts are restricted by outside parties for a specific future use.
Net assets have been “restricted” for the following:

“Community preservation” represents amounts restricted for open space, historic resource and affordable
housing purposes.

“ Affordable housing” represents amounts restricted for the creation and preservation of affordable housing
within the Town.

“Debt service” represents amounts restricted for the future payment of long-term debt service costs.

“Permanent funds - expendable” represents amounts held in trust for which the expenditures are restricted by
various trust agreements,

“Permanent funds - nonexpendable” represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may
be expended.

“Other specific purposes” represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.

Governmental Funds Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

The following fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

Nonspendable — represents amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form (i.e.,
prepaid amounts) or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (i.e., principal of
permanent fund).

Restricted — represents amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors,
or the laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed — represents amounts that can be used only for specific purposes imposed by a formal action of Town
Meeting, which is the highest level of decision-making authority for the Town, Committed amounts may be
established, modified, or rescinded only through actions approved by Town Meeting.

Assigned — represents amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but are
intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the Town’s structure, only authorized assignments for non-

contractual encumbrances can be made by individual department heads.

Unassigned - represents the residual fund balance for the General Fund and the negative residual fund balance of
any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting assigned fund balance amounts.

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple fund
balance classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

Encumbrance amounts have been assigned for specific purposes for which resources already have been allocated.
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O. Long-term Debt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net assets.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources when the debt is
issued. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond
premiums are reported as other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general
government expenditures.

P. Investment Income

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is
legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).

Investment income from proprietary funds is retained in the funds.
Q. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities upon employee retirements and resignations.

R. Post Retirement Benefits

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

In addition to providing pension benefits and as more fully described in Note 11, the Town provides health
insurance coverage for retired employees and their spouses.

S. Use of Estimates

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.
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T. Total Column

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column presented on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data
in this column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Information

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by Town Meeting vote. The Finance
Committee presents an annual budget to Town Meeting, which includes estimates of revenues and other
financing sources and recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. Town Meeting, which has full
authority to amend and/ or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority vote.
Increases subsequent to the approval of the annual budget require Special Town Meeting approval.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Others are
continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior
fiscal year be carried forward and made available for spending in the current fiscal year.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the level of spending (salaries, expenses and capital) authorized for an
appropriation account. However, the Town is statutorily required to pay debt service and certain other costs,
regardless of whether such amounts are appropriated.

An annual budget is adopted for the general fund and community preservation fund in conformity with the
guidelines described above. The original fiscal year 2012 approved budget for the general fund authorized
approximately $53,056,000 in appropriations and other amounts to be raised. During fiscal year 2012,
supplemental appropriations totaling approximately $1,022,000 were authorized. The original and final fiscal
year 2012 approved budget for the community preservation fund authorized approximately $1,040,000 in
appropriations.

The Accountant’s office has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary control
is exercised through the accounting system.
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B. Fund Deficits

At June 30, 2012, the following governmental fund deficits exist:

Fund Amount Funding Source

Title I distribution FY12............c.ccoviiinen . $ 100,021 Federal grant

SPED 94-142... ..o 86,111 Federal grant

Police outside detail....................covvviiniennnnnn. 48,105 Charges for services
Education jobs fund.................cccoooniiiiiiinnnn, 46,045 Federal grant
Teacher quality.............cooviiiiiii 43,982 Federal grant
Pumpout boat grant...................c.ooo, 20,000 State grant
Racetothetop........cooooivinii 16,663 State grant

State 911 incentive grant....................cooe 13,322 State grant

State aid to highways........................... L 11,634 State grant

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth authorize the Town to invest temporarily idle cash in bank
term deposits and certificates of deposits, and treasury and agency obligations of the United States government,
with maturities of one year or less; U.S. treasury or agency repurchase agreements with maturities of not more
than 90 days; money market accounts; and the state treasurer’s investment pool - the Massachusetts Municipal
Depository Trust (MMDT).

The MMDT meets the criteria of an external investment pool and operates in accordance with applicable state
laws and regulations. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth serves as Trustee. The reported value of the pool is
the same as the fair value of pool shares.

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds with unrestricted cash and
investments. The deposits and investments of permanent funds and private purpose trust funds are held

separately from other Town funds.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town’s deposits may not be
recovered. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2012, the Town'’s bank
balance of $37,849,194 was not exposed to custodial credit risk.
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Investments Summarv

The Town's investments at June 30, 2012 are presented below. All investments are presented by investment type,
with debt securities presented by maturity.

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10

Debt Securities:
U.S. Treasuries..........ccocevveninnnn.. $ 585,439 $ 150,844 % 318,325 $ 116,270
US. Agencies.............ccoevvininnnn. 1,559,344 832,562 726,782 -
Corporate bonds......................... 341,119 - 341,119 -
Money market mutual funds......... 1,121,643 1,121,643 - -
Mutual bond funds...................... 442,310 442,310 - -
External investment pools............. 4,269,251 4,269,251 - -

Total debt securities................... 8,319,106 $ 6,816,610 $ 1,386,226 $ 116,270
Other Investments:
Equity securities.........cc.cccciinininnnn. 350,602
Equity mutual funds.................... 387,316

Total other investments............... 737,918
Total investments........................ $ 9,057,024

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The Town does not have a policy for interest rate risk of debt securities.

Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Town will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments.
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At June 30, 2012, the Town's investments were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Held by

Fair Counterparty's

Investment Type Value Trust or Agent

U.S. Treasuries...........cccoveevennennns 585,439 $ 585,439
U.S. Agencies..............ocoveiiinnnnn, 1,559,344 1,559,344
Corporate bonds......................... 341,119 341,119
Money market mutual funds......... 1,121,643 1,121,643
Mutual bond funds...................... 442,310 442,310
Equity securities.......................... 350,602 350,602
Equity mutual funds.................... 387,316 387,316
Total,.coiiiiiiieii $ 4,787,773 § 4,787,773

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill its
obligations. The Town does not have a policy for credit risk of debt securities. As of June 30, 2012, the credit

quality ratings of the Town’s debt securities are as follows:

Quality Ratings *
Fair
Investment Type Value AA A Unrated
Corporate bonds........................ 341,119 $ 143,693 $ 197426 $ -
Money market mutual funds........ 1,121,643 = - 1,121,643
Mutual bond funds.................... 442,310 - - 442,310
External investment pools........... 4,269,251 = = 4,269,251

$ 6174323 $ 143,693 $ 197,426 $ 5,833,204

* Per the rating scale of Standard and Poor’s (a national credit rating organization)
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NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

AtJune 30, 2012, receivables for the individual major governmental funds and nonmajor, internal
fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible amounts, a

service, and
re as follows:

Gross Allowance for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:

Real estate and personal property taxes......... $ 1,702,781 % (121,422) $ 1,581,359
Real estate tax deferrals.........c..ccovevinveennnnnn. 77,642 - 77,642
250 LieNShe: . o - - - - - - 2 - - - 0@ T BT O 337,603 - 337,603
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes............. 522,138 (161,976) 360,162
Community preservation surcharges............. 49,602 - 49,602
Special assessments..............c.cccoovevieiiinnnnn.. 233,729 - 233,729
Departmental and other.............................. 985,954 (411,321) 574,633
Intergovernmental.................cccooovinnninn. 498,709 - 498,709

$ 4408158 % (694,719) $ 3,713,439

At June 30, 2012, receivables for the sewer and landfill enterprise funds consist of the following:
Gross Allowance for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:

User charges..........c.ccoooeceiiviciiinniinnn, $ 1,742,241 $ (103,423) $ 1,638,818
Utility liens............ooocooiviiiii 64,717 - 64,717
Special assessments................c.ccooeeeieiiinn 102,634 B 102,634
Intergovernmental....................cco 72,607 - 72,607

$ 1,982,199 $ (103,423) $ 1,878,776

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables and other assets (tax foreclosures) for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. The following

identifies the various components of deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds:

Community Nonmajor
General Preservation Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Total
Receivable type:
Real estate and personal property taxes..... $ 1324482 $ - 5 - § 1324482
Real estate tax deferrals..................c.. ... 77,642 - - 77,642
Tax Hens......cocoeviiiiiieiee e, 330,991 6,612 - 337,603
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes......... 360,162 = = 360,162
Community preservation surcharges........ - 49,602 - 49,602
Special assessments.............ocoevvinininnns 59,465 - 174,264 233,729
Departmental and other................ocoovieiis - - 574,633 574,633
Tax foreclosures.........ocovvvvirviirneeirinenennn. 560,682 S - 560,682
Total.....oo $ 2713424 $ 56,214 % 748,897 $ 3,518,535
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NOTE5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Total capital assets not being depreciated..........

Capital assets being depreciated:

Land improvements................ccccoeeeviiiniinecnnn,
Buildings and improvements..............................
Machinery and equipment....................cooeeinnn.
Infrastructure..............c.ooooici

Total capital assets being depreciated...............

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land improvements...............c..ccooeviieiniiinniennnns
Buildings and improvements..................c...........
Machinery and equipment..................c.oooeeeeinnnnl,
Infrastructure................cooo i

Total accumulated depreciation......................
Total capital assets being depreciated, net...................

Total governmental activities capital assets, net...........

Town of Bourne, Massachusetts

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
26,704,645 % - % - % 26,704,645
49,624 75,050 (49,624) 75,050
26,754,269 75,050 (49,624) 26,779,695
2,942,700 223,209 - 3,165,909
84,509,655 401,517 - 84,911,172
13,058,608 593,973 (233,421) 13,419,160
5,112,366 777,673 - 5,890,039
105,623,329 1,996,372 (233,421) 107,386,280
(720,540) (138,682) . (859,222)
(27,314,365) (2,409,137) . (29,723,502)
(9,571,559) (1,097,972) 227,620 (10,441,911)
(1,454,106) (177,983) s (1,632,089)
(39,060,570) (3,823,774) 227,620 (42,656,724)
66,562,759 (1,827,402) (5,801) 64,729,556
93,317,028 $ (1,752,352) $  (55425) $ 91,509,251
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-Type Activities - Sewer Enterprise:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Machinery and equipment...............c...c.cevvvvnnns 750,917 24,821 g 775,738
Other.......ooiiiii 1,332,118 - = 1,332,118
INFrastrUuChUIe. v 7,326,791 - - 7,326,791
Total capital assets being depreciated............... 9,409,826 24,821 - 9,434,647
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Machinery and equipment. ............c..ccccoooiiiiennn. (690,803) (10,202) - (701,005)
OReT ... e (1,332,118) - - (1,332,118)
INFrASHUCEUTE. . ...oeoeeees oo, (3,479,765) (185,409) - (3.665,174)
Total accumulated depreciation...................... (5,502,686) (195,611) - (5,698,297)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net................... 3,907,140 (170,790) - 3,736,350
Total sewer enterprise activities capital assets, net........ $ 3,907,140 $ (170,790) $ - § 3,736,350
Business-Type Activities - Landfill Enterprise:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land......ooooviiiiiiii $ 2,209,658 % - % - % 2,209,658
Construction in Progress. ... .. .ee e eiivesuriiiiirinnsnns - 2,711,383 - 2,711,383
Total capital assets not being depreciated........., 2,209,658 2,711,383 - 4,921,041
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements..................cccocvvnenenninnnL, 4,511,778 - - 4,511,778
Buildings and improvements.............................. 10,622,518 - - 10,622,518
Machinery and equipment.....................cooeeiiin. 5,192,139 360,900 - 5,553,039
Total capital assets being depreciated............... 20,326,435 360,900 - 20,687,335
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements............c..c.o.oveiiiiniiniinnnn.n (3,425,651) (755,146) - (4,180,797)
Buildings and improvements.............cc..o.cvvvvnnnnn. (6,240,915) (188,609) = (6,429,524)
Machinery and equipment......................cccoeoevnn. (3,586,986) (304,384) - (3,891,370)
Total accumulated depreciation...................... (13,253,552) (1,248,139) - (14,501,691)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net................... 7,072,883 (887,239) - 6,185,644
Total landfill enterprise capital assets, net................... $ 9,282,541 % 1,824,144 % - $ 11,106,685
Total business-type activities capital assets, net............ $ 13,189,681 $ 1,653,354 % - $ 14,843,035
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government...................oooeveeinnnns, $ 135,106
Public safety.........c...ocoooviiiiiiiii 405,318
Education..............cocooiiiiiiiiiiiii 2,456,443
Public works..........cocoviiiii 492,343
Health and human services.......................... 1,314
Culture and recreation..............ococevvieini.., 333,250
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities...... $ 3,823,774

Business-Type Activities:

SEWET........cviiii s s $ 195611
Landfill...............c 1,248,139
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities....... $ 1,443,750

NOTE 6 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

Transfers In:

Nonmajor Landfill
General Governmental Enterprise
Transfers Out: Fund Funds Fund Total
General Fund.......................... $ - % 22410 % -5 22,410 (1)
Community Preservation Fund....... 733,460 - - 733,460 (2)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds...... 1,576,318 - 21,600 1,597,918 (3)
Sewer Enterprise Fund.................. 130,742 = - 130,742 (4)
Landfill Enterprise Fund................ 2,447,878 - - 2,447,878 (5)
$ 4888398 % 22410 % 21,600 $ 4,932,408

(1) Represents budgeted transfer to the capital projects fund

(2) Represents budgeted transfer to fund debt service

(3) Represents budgeted transfers to fund a portion of the fiscal year 2012 operating budget from the ambulance
fund ($900,000), waterway improvements fund ($260,200), federal impact aid fund ($195,000), various closed
capital projects funds ($175,658), community septic management program fund ($30,460) and conservation
commission receipts reserved fund ($15,000). Also represents a transfer from the insurance recovery fund to
the landfill enterprise fund ($21,600).

(4) Represents budgeted transfer of indirect costs

(5) Represents budgeted transfers of indirect costs ($1,763,655) and the host community fees ($450,000). Also
represents additional transfer of host community fees ($234,223).
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NOTE 7 - SHORT-TERM FINANCING
Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:

*  Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue anticipation notes
(RAN) or tax anticipation notes (TAN).

¢ Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BAN) or grant anticipation notes (GAN).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expenditures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and enterprise funds,
respectively.

Details related to the short-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, is as follows:

Notes Payable - Governmental Funds

Origination Maturity Interest Balance at Balance at

Type Description Date Date Rate June 30, 2011 Increases Decreases June 30, 2012
BAN  School construction...................... 09/29/10 09/29/11 1.25% % 2,450,000 $ - 5 (2,/450,000) $ -
BAN Server update............cccccoimienennc 12/19/11 12/18/12 1.25% - 80,000 (80,000) -
BAN Police cruisers...........ocoovveerinnnnn. 12/19/11 12/18/12 1.25% - 110,000 (110,000) -
BAN Police computers......................... 12/19/11 12/18/12 1.25% - 26,000 (26,000) -
BAN Fire breaker vehicle...................... 12/19/11 12/18/12 1.25% - 55,000 (55,000) -
BAN Fireambulance...............cc.oooeviins 12/19/11 12/18/12 1.25% - 170,000 (170,000) -
BAN  School technology..............cccovvn.. 12/19/11  12/18/12 1.25% - 205,000 (205,000) -
BAN High school energy conversion....... 12/19/11 12/18/12 1.25% . 100,000 (100,000) -
BAN Removal of underground tanks...... 12/19/11 12/18/12 1.25% - 25,000 (25,000) -
BAN DPW dump truck...............coccees 12/19/11 12/18/12 1.25% - 150,000 (150,000) -
BAN DPW garage repairs..................... 12/19/11 12/18/12 1.25% - 50,000 (50,000) -
SAN  Bourndale elementary school......... 04/25/12 12/18/12 0.50% - 312,500 (312,500)
BAN Road repairs - Club House Drive.... 06/22/12 12/18/12 0.50% - 580,000 (580,000) -

Total.....oviveiic s $ 2,450,000 $ 1,863,500 $ (4,313,500) $ -

Notes Payable - Enterprise Funds
Origination Maturity Interest Balance at Balance at

Type Description Date Date Rate June 30, 2011 Increases Decreases June 30, 2012
BAN Landfill liner - phase 4.................. 12/19/11  12/18/12 1.25% $ -5 4,150,000 $ (4,100,000) $ 50,000

Subsequent Events

On September 19, 2012, the Town issued a state anticipation note in the amount of $1,421,500, at an interest rate of
0.50% with a maturity date of December 18, 2012.

On December 15, 2012, the Town issued $7,290,000 of general obligation bonds. A portion of the proceeds,
$5,963,500 plus $50,000 of available funds, was used to retire BAN's outstanding at June 30, 2012. Accordingly,
$5,963,500 of BAN’s have been reclassified to long-term debt at June 30, 2012. The remaining balance of
$1,326,500, was used to retire a portion of the state anticipation note outstanding in the amount of $1,421,500 with
the remaining $95,000 being retired with available funds.
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30, Current
2011 Increases Decreases 2012 Portion

Governmental Activities:
Bonds and notes payable..... $ 25423945 $ 1,863,500 $ (2,434,242) $ 24,853,203 $ 2,771,497
Net OPEB obligation........... 8,892,058 5,954,869 (2,242,159) 12,604,768 -
Compensated absences....... 1,907,840 . (90,863) 1,816,977 181,698
Total........ocooviiiii $ 36223843 $ 7818369 $ (4,767264) $ 39274948 $ 2,953,195
Business-type Activities:
Bonds and notes payable..... $ 7460778 $ 4,100,000 $ (1,014,296) $ 10,546,482 $ 1,046,255
Net OPEB obligation........... 534,855 380,216 (110,262) 804,809 -
Landfill closure.................. 4,225,219 513,444 (175,086) 4,563,577 -
Compensated absences....... 187,537 4,150 - 191,687 19,169
Total........ooooviiiii $ 12,408389 $ 4997810 $ (1,299,644) $ 16,106,555 $ 1,065,424

Except for debt service related to acquisitions by the community preservation fund (major fund), the
governmental activities long-term liabilities are generally liquidated by the general fund.
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NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 2012, and the debt service requirements are as follows:

Bonds and Notes Payable - Governmental Funds

Outstanding Outstanding
Interest at June 30, at June 30,
Project Rate 2011 Issued Redeemed 2012

MWPAT Pool 997-1038-1.........ccccevvvnvnnnn. 0.00% $ 126,890 % - 5 (9.842) $ 117,048
MWPAT Title V97-1038.............cvvivinnnnn, 0.00% 103,800 - (10,400) 93,400
MWPAT Pool 11 T5-97-1038-2..................... 0.00% 150,000 - (10,000) 140,000
Tennis Courts..........cccoovvvviienieiiinienen, 4.73% 2,000 - (2,000) -
Town Hall Repair...........c..ccoeeiviiiniiennninnn, 5.02% 476,000 - (96,000) 380,000
Community Center..............cceevviiiivinennnn. 3.55% 2,921,000 - (257,000) 2,664,000
Land for Community Center....................... 3.47% 190,000 - (19,000) 171,000
Police Remodeling..............c..ccoocevinnninnins 2.97% 18,000 - (6,000) 12,000
Library Roof.........cccccoovienininiiiies 319% 82,000 - (14,000) 68,000
Land Acquisition............ccocooevieiiinniininnn.l. 3.52% 797,000 - (73,000) 724,000
Land Acquisition......................c 3.53% 1,353,000 - (123,000) 1,230,000
Land Acquisition.................cc.co i 3.57% 629,000 - (53,000) 576,000
Land Acquisition..............c.coeviiiiieeeiinnn, 3.87% 2,050,000 - (150,000) 1,900,000
School Plans...........ccccocovviivin e, 3.85% 250,000 - (20,000) 230,000
Municipal Purpose Loan............................ 4.25% 3,802,000 - (441,000) 3,361,000
Municipal Purpose Loan............................ 3.14% 7,924,000 - (875,000) 7,049,000
School Refunding............ccc.coveviniiinininnninn, 2.00% - 3.00% 960,000 - (275,000) 685,000
Municipal Purpose Loan..................c.c.vv... 1.50 % - 4.00% 3,589,255 - - 3,589,255
Municipal Purpose Loan............................ 2.00% - 3.00% E 1,863,500 - 1,863,500
Total governmental funds.......................... $ 25423945 $ 1,863,500 S (2,434,242) $ 24,853,203
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for governmental bonds and notes payable in future fiscal
years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2013, $ 2,771,497 $ 761,650 $ 3,633,147
2014............... 2,740,801 705,440 3,446,241
2015, 2,498,444 626,967 3,125,411
2016............... 2,163,444 552,002 2,715,446
20170, 1,763,444 484,714 2,248,158
2018.........c 1,626,444 429,744 2,056,188
2019....... 1,578,444 374,706 1,953,150
2020........0cne 1,547,817 321,258 1,869,075
2021, 1,517,617 268,785 1,786,402
2022, 1,390,417 217,993 1,608,410
2023, 1,163,417 173,275 1,336,692
2024............... 808,417 138,472 946,889
2025......0in 799,000 110,143 909,143
2026............... 627,000 81,504 708,504
2027, .. 495,000 61,158 556,158
2028............... 480,000 42,731 522,731
2029.............0. 355,000 26,671 381,671
2030............... 344,000 13,161 357,161
2031......ccveeees 94,000 4,871 98,871
2032, 89,000 1,615 90,615
Total. ..o $ 24853203 $ 5396860 $ 30,250,063
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Bonds and Notes Payable - Enterprise Funds

Outstanding Outstanding
Interest at June 30, at June 30,
Project Rate 2011 [ssued Redeemed 2012

MWPAT Sewer 91-21..........civiiinenians 0.00% $ 201,809 $ -5 (78,889) § 122,920
MWPAT Sewer 93-15.......ccccovvererinnnnrs 3.60% 40,969 - (9,407) 31,562
Landfill Water Main............................ 5.05% 27,000 - (7,000) 20,000
Landfill Liner.........cccoocvvviniiiinnne 3.77% 1,500,000 - (300,000) 1,200,000
ISWM Bulldozer..............ccccooeeiiinn. 4.25% 75,000 - (75,000) -
ISWM Scale.........ocooiiviiiiininn, 4.25% 62,000 - (62,000) -
ISWM Landfill Phase 3 Stage 3.............. 3.14% 356,000 - (22,000) 334,000
Sewer Truck.............ocoveeiii 3.14% 16,000 - (8,000) 8,000
Sewer Replace Pumps and Panels.......... 3.14% 13,000 - (7,000) 6,000
Sewer Replace Pumps and Panels.......... 3.14% 73,000 - (25,000) 48,000
ISWM Landfill Phase IIA/IIIA Liner...... 3.14% 2,090,000 - (110,000) 1,980,000
ISWM Komatsu 155A Dozer................. 3.14% 450,000 - (150,000) 300,000
ISWM Gas Generator and App.............. 3.14% 257,000 - (87,000) 170,000
ISWM Landfill Processing Center........... 3.14% 331,000 - (19,000) 312,000
ISWM Residential Recycling Center....... 3.14% 996,000 - (54,000) 942,000
ISWM Road Repair............coooovvniininn 2.38% 250,000 - - 250,000
ISWM Flare Skid.............ccccoceeiiniiencn, 1.81% 335,000 - - 335,000
ISWM CAT Mini Loader..................... 0.98% 95,000 - - 95,000
ISWM Ford 550 Container Truck............ 0.99% 72,000 - - 72,000
ISWM Cap/Odor Mitigation................. 2.78% 220,000 - - 220,000
ISWM Phase IV Landfill Liner............... 2.00% - 3.00% - 4,100,000 - 4,100,000
Total enterprise funds..............cceiins $ 7,460,778 $ 4,100,000 $ (1,014,296 $ 10,546,482
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for enterprise fund bonds and notes payable in future fiscal
years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2013, $ 1,046,255 $ 221,645 % 1,267,900
2014...........000. 1,811,118 225,687 2,036,805
740 [ P — 1,502,109 196,045 1,698,154
2016, wuwsnissiins 1,438,000 165,271 1,603,271
2017 1,051,000 132,741 1,183,741
201 Buiissswaine 1,051,000 105,238 1,156,238
2019....ccennn. 229,000 89,316 318,316
2020.....00iciiian 229,000 82,226 311,226
202100 229,000 75,130 304,130
2022w 229,000 67,870 296,870
2023, 229,000 145,004 374,004
2024w 229,000 60,668 289,668
2025, s yessmsimvene 229,000 44,040 273,040
2026. vz 226,000 35,583 261,583
2027,y vssunsnsnsas 210,000 112,215 322,215
2028, syavasigages 210,000 44,931 254,931
L1 RRR— 190,000 11,941 201,941
2030w 186,000 4,476 190,476
203 T.nmmswesusises 11,000 591 11,591
20325 11,000 199 11,199
Total. v $ 10,546,482 $ 1,820,817 $ 12,367,300

Subsequent Events

On December 15, 2012, the Town issued $7,290,000 of general obligation bonds. Of this amount, $5,963,500 was
used to retire BAN's (related to the phase four landfill liner, road resurfacing, school building improvements, and
other various municipal purposes) that were outstanding at June 30, 2012 and, accordingly, the $5,963,500 of
BAN’s have been reclassified to long-term debt at June 30, 2012. The remaining balance of $1,326,500 was used
for the purchase of equipment, school technology, public works truck, police cruisers, community building
remodeling, and other various municipal purposes.
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The Town is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. At June 30, 2012, the Town had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount

Elementary School..............c.coociiniinn, $ 14,687,500
Landfill liner - phase4....................co i, 50,000 *
Landfill liner - phase 4...........coocvciiivvniiiiiinienininn.. 605,850
Replace Fireengine 125.............cooivviiviiniiiin 575,000
ISWM replace 826g compactor................occoveeeennn.. 500,000
ISWM replace CAT 6R dozer...............ocoeeviiiinnnn, 235,000
School technology..............oooivviiiii i 210,000
DPW replace dump/sander truck ......................... 141,000
Police CIUISers............oovveeiiiiiiiiiicie i 136,000
Veterans community building renovations.............. 130,000
Pocasset playground upgrade.......................oonn 75,000
Police tasers...........ocoooviiiniiniiiii 65,500
Clark field playground upgrade............................ 60,000
School maintenance truck....................ccooevinnnnn. 60,000
High School - replace gym bleachers...................... 44,000

TOBRL s oo S T S $ 17,574,850

* Represents BAN outstanding at June 30, 2012

NOTE 10 - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE

The Town currently operates an active landfill. State and federal laws and regulations require the Town to place
a final cover on each landfill cell when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions for 30 years after final closure of the site. Although the majority of closure and postclosure
care costs will be paid only near or after the date that a landfill site stops accepting waste, the Town reports a
portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill
capacity used as of each statement of net assets date.
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The closure and postclosure care liability consist of the following at June 30, 2012:

Closure:

Phase 2A/3A.. ... $ 1,996,430

Phase 3, Stage 3 South Side.......................... 583,885
Sub-total (closure).............cooooeviiiinnnn 2,580,315

Postclosurecare........c.cccovvvniniiniiniiieiin, 1,882,458

Transfer station closure......................coevn. . 100,804

Total closure and postclosure care Liability..... $ 4,563,577

The Phase 2A/3A landfill closure liability represents the cumulative amount reported based on the use of 95% of
the estimated capacity of the cell. The Phase 3, Stage 3 South Side landfill closure liability represents the
cumulative amount reported based on the use of 100% capacity. The postclosure care liability represents the
cumulative amount reported based on the use of 59% of the estimated capacity of the entire landfill.

Closure and postclosure care costs consist of the following at June 30, 2012:

Costs:

PoStCloSUIE CATE. .. o v $ 120,559
Phase 2A/3A.. ... 389,948
Transfer station closure..............ccocoviiin.l. 2,937
Total closure and postclosure care costs......... 513,444
Less: amounts paid toward closure............... (175,086)
Net increase to landfill liability..................... $ 338,358

These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in 2012. Based on
current demographic information and engineering estimates of landfill consumption, the Town expects to close
the landfill in approximately 2025. Actual cost may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes
in regulations. The Town will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of
approximately $6,300,000 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled.

The Town is required by state laws and regulations to meet annual financial assurance requirements. At June 30,
2012, approximately $3,335,000 of funds has been set aside for closure and postclosure care costs.

NOTE 11 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description - The Town provides health and life insurance coverage for its retirees and their survivors
(hereinafter referred to as the “Plan”) as a single-employer defined benefit Other Post Employment Benefit
(OPEB) plan. Chapter 32B of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions. Changes to
plan design and contribution rates must be accomplished through the collective bargaining process. The Plan
does not issue a stand alone financial report since there are no assets legally segregated for the sole purpose of
paying benefits under the Plan. '
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The number of participants as of June 30, 2010, the latest actuarial valuation, is as follows:

Active employees...........c.cooceiineiiinnnie 392
Retired employees and spouses............. 421
o £ 813

Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Town are established and may be
amended by the Town. The required health insurance contribution rates of Plan members and the Town
(including Medicare Part B) are 25% and 75%, respectively. The Plan members and Town each contribute 50%
towards a $5,000 term life insurance premium. The Town currently contributes enough money to the Plan to
satisfy current obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. The costs of administering the Plan are paid by the Town.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The Town'’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an actuarially determined amount that is calculated in
accordance with the parameters set forth in GASB Statement #45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components
of the Town’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the actual amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the

Town’s net OPEB obligation:

Annual required contribution........
Interest on net OPEB obligation......

Adjustment to annual required contribution......

Increase in net OPEB obligation......

Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year.........

Net OPEB obligation at end of year

Amount

$ 6,218,607

433,746
(317,268)

6,335,085
(2,352,421)

3,982,664
9,426,913

$ 13,409,577

Trend information regarding annual pension cost, the percentage of the annual pension cost contributed and the

net pension obligation is as follows:

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year OPEB Cost of AOPEBC OPEB
Ending (AOPEBC) Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2010......... $ 5,181,034 443% $ 5,647,265
June 30, 2011......... 6,007,877 37.1% 9,426,913
June 30, 2012......... 6,335,085 37.1% 13,409,577
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Funded Status and Funding Progress - The funded status of the Plan at June 30, 2010, the most recent actuarial
valuation, was as follows:

Actuarial
Accrued UAALasa
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL)Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (A) B) (B-A) (A/B) © (B-A)/C)
06/30/10 $ - % 88,040,390 $ 88,040,390 - % 30,015,606 293%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive
Plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and Plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows:

Valuation date: June 30, 2010

Actuarial cost method: Projected Unit Credit

Amortization method: Amortization payments increasing at 4.50%

Remaining amortization period: 30 years (open)

Interest discount rate: 5.00%

Medical/ drug cost trend rate: Health - 10.00% decreasing by 0.75% for 6 years and by 0.50% for 1 year

to an ultimate level of 5.00% per year.
Dental - 5.00% per year

Inflation rate: 4.50%
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Allocation of AOPEBC - AOPEBC costs were allocated to the Town’s functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government.........................0. $ 343,303
Public safety.........c..ccoocciviiiniinninnnnnn, 1,473,271
Education.............ccoovviiiiiiini, 3,604,296
Public works. ... 308,324
Health and human services................. 132,644
Culture and recreation........................ 93,031
Total AOPEBC - governmental activities.... 5,954,869

Business-Type Activities:

SEWET..........cssms i dimmrads e 34,513
Landfillypmmsssmspmmmemnmasesmmsamsmmss 345,703
Total AOPEBC - business-type activities..... 380,216
Total AOPEBC...........cooeiviiinviiiin, $ 6,335,085

NOTE 12 - RISK FINANCING

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance.

The Town is self-insured for its health insurance activities. These activities are accounted for in the internal
service fund where revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred.

The estimated “Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)” claims are based on actual subsequent activity and historical
trends. The liability at June 30, 2012 totaled $408,393. Changes in the reported liability since July 1, 2010, are as
follows:

Current Year
Balance at Claims and Balance at
Beginning of Changes in Claims Fiscal
Fiscal Year Estimate Payments Year-end
Fiscal year 2011.......... $ 728,836 % 8,861,671 $ (8,860,630) $ 729,877
Fiscal year 2012.......... 729,877 9,014,692 (9,336,176) 408,393
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NOTE 13 - FUND BALANCES

The constraints on fund balances as listed in aggregate in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet are detailed as
follows:

Nonmajor Total
Community Governmental Governmental
General Preservation Funds Funds
Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal...................... $ - $ - $ 35341 % 35,341
Restricted:
Debt Service......oouvviiiiiiieiiiinininannnn 57,111 - - 57,111
Community preservation....................... - 4,662,432 - 4,662,432
Ambulance receipts reserved.................. - - 1,124,380 1,124,380
Foundation reserve...........cooovveveiiinvunnn, - 3 984,130 984,130
School Choice.....o..ivviie e - - 516,634 516,634
Capital......coooviiiini - . 1,467,867 1,467,867
Open space.........cceceeeeeneiiiviiinie i, - - 250,000 250,000
Affordable housing.......................c...0v. - - 143,478 143,478
Community development block grant...... - - 31,590 31,590
Schoollunch..........ccoovvvvii i, - - 21,005 21,005
General government...........ccc..c.oevunnnnnn. - - 85,922 85,922
Publicsafety.............oooviviviiiiiniein, - . 440,777 440,777
Education.........coovvviiiiiviiiiinienn, - - 472,609 472,609
Public works........coovveviviiiiiiiiin, - - 382,542 382,542
Health and human services.................... - - 12,358 12,358
Culture and recreation.......................... - - 101,901 101,901
Sub-total - Restricted........................ 57,111 4,662,432 6,035,193 10,754,736
Committed:
Subsequent year's expenditures.............. 1,750,000 - - 1,750,000
Capital stabilization.............................. 720,956 - - 720,956
Continuing appropriations..................... 1,722,792 - - 1,722,792
Sub-total - Committed...................... 4,193,748 - - 4,193,748
Assigned:
Encumbrances. ........cooovveviiviinineisninennns 146,464 - - 146,464
Unassigned.......c.oiviiiiinvnrver ennvnnvesvncon vos o 10,872,935 - (385,883) 10,487,052
$ 15270258 $ 4,662,432 % 5,684,651 $ 25,617,341
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NOTE 14 - STABILIZATION FUNDS

The Town maintains a general stabilization fund and a capital stabilization fund that were established under
MGL Chapter 40, Section 5B. Appropriations in and out of the stabilization funds require two-thirds vote of
Town Meeting. Investment income is retained by the funds.

The balance of the general stabilization and capital stabilization funds at June 30, 2012 total $3,475,477 and
$720,956, respectively. These balances are reported in the general fund as unassigned and committed fund
balance, respectively.

NOTE 15 - PRIOR PERIOD RECLASSIFICATIONS

The beginning fund balance of the nonmajor governmental funds have been restated from $4,463,307 to
$4,786,456 to reflect the reclassification of the previously reported Elementary School Construction major fund
totaling $323,149.

NOTE 16 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Description - The Town contributes to the Barnstable County Retirement Association (the Association), a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Barnstable County Retirement
Board. Substantially all employees of the Town are members of the Association, except for public school teachers
and certain administrators who are members of the Commonwealth’s Teachers Retirement System.

Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. The Association
provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments
granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increases in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth’s state law
during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the pension fund. Cost-of-living
adjustments granted after 1997 must be authorized by the Barnstable County Retirement Board and are borne by
the Association. The Association issues a publicly available report in accordance with guidelines established by
the Commonwealth’s Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission. That report may be obtained by
contacting the System located at 750 Attucks Lane, Hyannis, Massachusetts, 01970.

Funding Policy - Chapter 32 of MGL governs the contributions of plan members and the Town. Plan members
are required to contribute to the Association at rates ranging from 5% to 11% of annual covered compensation.
The Town is required to pay into the Association its share of the system-wide actuarial determined contribution
that is apportioned among the employers based on annual covered payroll. The Town'’s contributions to the
Association for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $2,580,728, $2,503,929, and $2,236,480,
respectively, which equaled its required contribution for each fiscal year.

NOTE 17 - MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Public school teachers and certain administrators are members of the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System,
to which the Town does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative expenses paid by the Teachers
Retirement Board are the legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount of these on-behalf payments
totaled approximately $5,481,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, and, accordingly, are reported in the
general fund as intergovernmental revenues and pension expenditures.
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NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS

Significant commitments include the encumbrances and continuing appropriations outstanding for the general
fund, which totaled $1,869,256 at June 30, 2012.

NOTE 19 - CONTINGENCIES

Various legal actions and claims are pending against the Town. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and
the outcome of individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of Liability, if any, at
June 30, 2012, cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the
financial position of the Town at June 30, 2012.

The Town participates in a number of federal award programs. Although the grant programs have been audited
in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through June 30, 2012, these
programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures, which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies, cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects such amounts,
if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 20 - FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS
The GASB has issued the following statements:
» Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements, which is required

to be implemented during fiscal year 2013. Management does not believe the implementation of this
Statement will impact the basic financial statements.

» Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and
No. 34, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2013, Management does not believe the
implementation of this Statement will impact the basic financial statements.

» Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30,
1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2013.
Management does not believe the implementation of this Statement will impact the basic financial
statements.

Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Posttion, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2013. The implementation of this
Statement will require a change to the title of the Statement of Net Assets to the Statement of Net
Position,

Y

» Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which is required to be implemented
during fiscal year 2014. Management does not believe the implementation of this Statement will
significantly impact the basic financial statements.

» Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections - 2012 - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62, which
is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2014. Management does not believe the implementation
of this Statement will impact the basic financial statements.
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> Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans ~ an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, which is
required to be implemented during fiscal year 2014. Management has determined that the
implementation of this Statement will not impact the basic financial statements.

> Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an Amendment of GASB Statement No.
27, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2015. The implementation of this Statement
will represent a significant change in the accounting and reporting of pension expense and the related
liability. For the first time, the Town will be required to recognize its long-term obligation for pension
benefits as a liability and to more comprehensively measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The
implementation of this Statement also expands pension related note disclosures and required
supplementary information.

These pronouncements will be implemented by their respective implementation dates.
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GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Prior Year

Encumbrances Supplemental
and Continuing Original Appropriations Final
Appropriations Budget and Transfers Budget
REVENUES
Real estate and personal property taxes..............c.ccccovvvvvrviiniiciiinncnn... $ - $ 36,634,178 $ - 36,634,178
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.........c.ocvvviiiiieiiininiiiiineiieaninnn, - 1,817,939 - 1,817,939
Tax NS . 5. 5 e viter s o M AT ATOLTAARER e« v e r o v8o e v a dom Ao dTE R e e s esreerinestnim - - = -
Payments in lieu Of LAXES.......uiiiiiiiiiiiminiiniii i iastenreee et - 24,000 B 24,000
[NteTGOVETNMENTAL .. .. ooiiiiiiiiii it cie vtk ceeae et e e - 7,021,844 - 7,021,844
Special ASSeSSIMENES. ..euvi i ivviiiiiiiii e e - - =
Penalties and interest On taXeS..........vvevierieireireiieiiieireeniesseereneenens 272,780 - 272,780
Licenses and PeTMILS. . .......cccucuuutiiiiiririiriisinrirriiineneeeeeeiiieeeeeerenes - 441,000 - 441,000
Fines and (O elfUTes. ... ..ot r e eens = 108,000 - 108,000
Departmental and other. - 1,439,650 - 1,439,650
INvestment iNCOME. . ....v. i e e e e e - 53,000 - 53,000
TOTAL REVENUES. ... .o ittt ieis s es b e sanieesanns - 47,812,391 - 47,812,391
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General GOVEINIMENt. ... .veeureiaiuiiiii i iaeiaeeeeaeeaiaeeaeeeaa e e 260,586 2,896,016 33,823 3,190,425
Public safety........ 1,124,194 7,750,199 472,855 9,347,248
Education..... 445,398 21,742,553 (2,746) 22,185,205
Public works............c....... 33,431 2,082,896 311,148 2,427,475
Health and human services... 933 928,954 59,627 989,514
Culture and recreation....... 79,663 603,463 56,499 739,625
Pension benefits...........ccccocvvviiiiiiiiiniiniinens B - 2,629,315 162 2,629,477
Employee benefits............ccocoeovie i, - 7,481,500 14,897 7,496,397
Property and liability insurance...............c.cooeeeen. . P—— - 737,110 52,605 789,715
State and county Charges. .......cccoiiiiiniiiiiaiiiii e - 2,882,538 - 2,882,538
Debt service:
PrinciPal.. s, ausihesee i oo ussbisn s gutii e i35 e eeseevneeesoe bokios ERuERn oo oo oAb o i - 2,439,242 - 2,439,242
B D= o o O - 881,922 513 882,435
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.......cotiviiiiiiiiiieiiee e iaein s 1,944,205 53,055,708 999,383 55,999,296
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES. ... oo iiiiiiiiiiiinine i saaiei e nn e (1,944,205) (5,243,317) (999,383) (8,186,905)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TTANSIETS Il 11 1e s caiin et eeri et ee e ettt cns s e e e sn e e s enanntees - 4,293,317 512,871 4,806,188
Premium from issuance of bonds and notes.........c...c.ccoooeveevivvnvenn e, B - - =
Sale of capital asSets........ccorvvviiiiiiiiiiiein - - s -
TTANSEETS OUL...vvvviaieen st e e eee e e ettt e e e ee e e e e eeeene s - - (22,410) (22,410)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).........cccevvrvvinnnn. - 4,293,317 490,461 4,783,778
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE. ....cccuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiaiiiiiiisiasssimsnsnsiieaans (1,944,205) (950,000) (508,922) (3,403,127)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR. .. cciieiiviiiiinainiiinmesiniieinnn 8,968,455 8,968,455 8,968,455 8,968,455
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR....ooiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiieiiiiie i $ 7,024,250 $  8,018455 $ 8,459,533 5,565,328

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Current Year Actual and
Encumbrances Encumbrances Variance
and Continuing and Continuing Positive/
Actual Appropriations Appropriations (Negative)
$ 37,237,301 S 37,237,301 603,123
2,276,771 - 2,276,771 458,832
207,719 207,719 207,719
13,948 - 13,948 (10,052)
7,111,431 - 7,111,431 89,587
9,474 - 9,474 9,474
399,026 - 399,026 126,246
570,818 - 570,818 129,818
128,945 - 128,945 20,945
1,604,186 - 1,604,186 164,536
42,892 - 42,892 (10,108)
49,602,511 - 49,602,511 1,790,120
2,731,816 320,632 3,052,448 137,977
7,792,355 1,137,521 8,929,876 417,372
21,988,993 146,634 22,135,627 49,578
2,102,137 191,613 2,293,750 133,725
919,536 7,466 927,002 62,512
651,713 65,390 717,103 22,522
2,576,635 - 2,576,635 52,842
6,814,680 - 6,814,680 681,717
787,715 - 787,715 2,000
2,812,142 - 2,812,142 70,396
2,434,242 - 2,434,242 5,000
842,046 842,046 40,389
52,454,010 1,869,256 54,323,266 1,676,030
(2,851,499) (1,869,256) (4,720,755) 3,466,150
4,806,188 - 4,806,188 -
137,197 - 137,197 137,197
1,105 1,105 1,105
(22,410) - (22,410) -
4,922,080 - 4,922,080 138,302
2,070,581 (1,869,256) 201,325 3,604,452
8,968,455 8,968,455 8,968,455 -
$ 11,039,036 7,099,199 $ 9,169,780 3,604,452
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COMMUNITY PRESERVATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Prior Year
Encumbrances Supplemental
and Continuing Original Appropriations Final
Appropriations Budget and Transfers Budget
REVENUES

Community preservation SUrcharges...........c.ccoovivivvieiienneiienennn. $ - $ 1,073,700 % - % 1,073,700

Intergovernmental .............c.ccoviiiiiviin i - 300,640 - 300,640

Tax liens.........ccccoovviiiiiniinnnnnn. - - s -

Penalties and interest on taxes.... - - - =

Departmental and other............ - - - -

Investment iNCOME. ... ....cuumiviiiieiiiiiiiiaiii i ieneniaiieians - = -

TOTAL REVENUES i cusvussssissisisisins fhs fsidsnseninaisnmnin - 1,374,340 - 1,374,340
EXPENDITURES

Current:

General GOVEINMENt.........oivvviiiiiiii e 51,423 30,000 - 81,423

Health and human Services................ovviiiiersie e eiieiin 422,369 137,435 - 559,804

Culture and recreation..... N S B LA 890,201 139,435 - 1,029,636

TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ..........octiiiiiie oo 1,363,993 306,870 - 1,670,863
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES 4 1vvvicesasasiinnusiasssssiobinbbsiiasasismaiismsenn (1,363,993) 1,067,470 - (296,523)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

TTANSEETS OUL. . .eeiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s et e - (733,460) - (733,460)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE. ........occoiiiiiiieiiiiiiins s (1,363,993) 334,010 - (1,029,983)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR........ccoooviiiiiiriirnenins 4,504,555 4,504,555 4,504,555 4,504,555
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR . ...c0ieciiiiioriiriineiee e iiiieeaneeans 3,140,562 $ 4,838565 $ 4,504,555 % 3,474,572

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Current Year Actual and

Encumbrances Encumbrances Variance

and Continuing and Continuing Positive/
Actual Appropriations Appropriations {Negative)
$ 1,091,120 § - % 1,091,120 § 17,420
311,124 - 311,124 10,484
5,945 - 5,945 5,945
8,956 - 8,956 8,956
104 - 104 104
6,409 - 6,409 6,409
1,423,658 - 1,423,658 49,318
38,554 33,871 72,425 8,998
59,290 500,514 559,804 -
422,477 595,159 1,017,636 12,000
520,321 1,129,544 1,649,865 20,998
903,337 (1,129,544} (226,207) 70,316
(733,460) - (733,460) -
169,877 (1,129,544) (959,667) 70,316
4,504,555 4,504,555 4,504,555 -
$ 4674432 % 3375011 § 3,544,888 % 70,316
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PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES

The following schedules provide information related to the Association as a whole, for which the Town is one

participating employer:
SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS (ASSOCIATION)

Actuarial UAALasa

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (a/B) © (B-A)/C)
01/01/10 $ 554,876,554 $ 1,030,210,321 $ 475,333,767 53.9% $ 234,374,075 202.8%
01/01/09 520,089,855 966,564,614 446,474,759 53.8% 249,971,296 178.6%
01/01/07 517,396,087 825,863,068 308,466,981 62.6% 226,391,633 136.3%
01/01/06 465,637,984 765,747,723 300,109,739 60.8% 215,474,180 139.3%
01/01/04 378,317,300 647,655,411 269,338,111 58.4% 190,614,004 141.3%
01/01/02 362,911,896 553,531,966 190,620,070 65.6% 173,610,557 109.8%

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (ASSOCIATION)

Annually
Required Percentage of
Year Ended  Contributions ARC
December 31 (ARC) Contributed (%)
2006 $ 32,038,146 100
2007 34,360,912 100
2008 36,943,817 100
2009 39,899,322 100
2010 43,893,051 100
2011 43,807,158 100

The following schedule provides information related to the Town’s portion of the Association’s ARC:

TOWN SHARE OF ASSOCIATION ARC

Fiscal Year

Percentage of

Town ARC

Ended ARC as a Percentage of
June 30 ARC Contributed (%) Association ARC (%)
2007 1,801,969 100 5.6%
2008 1,888,019 100 55%
2009 2,046,604 100 55%
2010 2,236,480 100 5.6%
2011 2,503,929 100 5.7%
2012 2,580,728 100 5.9%
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS SCHEDULE
The following schedule provides information related to the Town'’s other postemployment benefits plan:

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial
Accrued UAALasa
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (8) B) (B-A) (A/B) (©) (B-A)/C)
06/30/10 $ - % 88,040,390 $ 88,040,390 - $ 30,015,606 293%
06/30/08 - 74,937,141 74,937,141 - 27,668,817 271%

The significant change to the methods and assumptions used in the actuarial valuations identified above that

impacted trends in the schedules of funding progress is the increase in the trend on medical and prescription
drug costs.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE A - BUDGETARY - GAAP RECONCILIATION

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Massachusetts Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A
reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund and community preservation fund

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, is presented below:

General Fund
Other
Financing
Revenues Expenditures Sources (Uses)
Budgetary basis as reported on the schedule of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balance - budget and actual...................oooiiii $ 49,602,511 % 54,323,266 % 4,922,080
Adjustments:
Net change in recording 60-day receipts..............cccoeevviiiiiviniinnn. 5,462 < -
Net change in recording tax refunds payable...............c.c..cccceiiiiinin, (250,062) - -
Net change in recording other revenues.......................ccooc.invennnn. 108,739 - =
To record MTRS on-behalf payments...................cccooiviiiiiiiiin 5,480,964 5,480,964 -
Net change in recording short-term interest accrual............................. - (49,873) -
Net change in recording other expenditures....................ccoooovieeeeernnnn. - 529 s
To record encumbrances and continuing appropriations. ...................... - (1,869,256) B
Total on GAAP basis of accounting............cccccocooeviiiiiiieniininiiiin, 54,947,614 57,885,630 4,922,080
Reclassifications:
To reclassify the activity of the stabilization fund to the general fund..... 58,049 - 82,210
GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances...........................coooee $ 55,005,663 $ 57,885,630 $ 5,004,290
Community Preservation Fund
Expenditures
Budgetary basis as reported on the schedule of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balance - budget and actual....................ccocviiiiiii $ 1,649,865
Adjustments:
To record encumbrances and continuing appropriations................... S (1,129,544)
GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances....................................... $ 520,321
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NOTE B - PENSION PLAN

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is as follows:

Valuation date: January 1, 2010

Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal cost

Amortization method: Payments increase at 4.00% per year after fiscal 2015

Remaining amortization period: 28 years from July 1, 2010 for 2002 and 2003 Early Retirement Incentives,

retiree sheriffs liability and remaining unfunded liability
Asset valuation method: 5-year smoothing of investment returns greater (less) than expected

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return: 8.00%
Projected salary increases: 4.75% - 5.25%
Cost of living adjustments: 3.00% of first $12,000 of retirement income, increasing $1,000 per year in

fiscal year 2012, 2013 and 2014
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